
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

         25 January 2012 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Monday, 6 February 2012 
beginning at 

6:00 pm 
in 

Committee Room, Civic Offices, Leigh Road, Eastleigh 

 
TO: Councillor Anne Winstanley MA (Cantab) (Chair),  
 Councillor Daniel Clarke BA (Hons) PGCE (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor Mrs Cathie Fraser Councillor Keith House 
Councillor Wayne Irish MInstTA Councillor Steve Sollitt BA 

 
 
Staff Contacts: Cheryll Kemsley, Democratic Services Officer Tel:  023 8068 8112; 

Email: cheryll.kemsley@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 

  
 

RICHARD WARD 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the 
Council's website - 

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings 
as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and 

other languages, upon request. 
 

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the 
start of the meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the 

item is discussed.  To register please contact the Democratic 
Services Officer above 

Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, 
sound recording and photography at meetings open to the public.. 

 

Civic Offices, Leigh Road, 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

 
 
 
2008/09 
Tackling Climate Change 



 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 4)  

 To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 21 November 2011.  
  
2. Apologies     
 
3. Declarations of Interest      

 Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes.  

  
4. Insulin Dependant Diabetes: Removal of Policy for Private Hire and Hackney 

Carriage Drivers    (Pages 5 - 16) 
 
5. Polling Review - Bishopstoke West and Eastleigh Central    (Pages 17 - 30) 
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Monday, 18 June 2012 at 6:00 pm 

at Committee Room, Civic Offices, Leigh 
Road, Eastleigh 

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  - 

 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews  

 
 



ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 21 November 2011  (6:00 pm – 6:13 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Winstanley (Chair); Councillors Clarke, House and Sollitt 
 
Also in attendance: Councillors Grajewski 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Mrs Fraser and 
Irish 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

1. MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 9 August 2011 be confirmed 
and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
Members were invited to declare interests in relation to items of business 
on the agenda.  Any interests declared are recorded in the relevant minute 
below. 
 

3. SEAT CAPACITY IN HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE 
VEHICLES 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services which proposed new conditions for the seating width 
in hackney carriages and private hire vehicles. 
 
The Licensing Department, Depot staff and Trade representatives had 
held several meetings regarding this matter and agreement had been 
reached that the measurement for the rear seat should be measured in a 
straight line across the centre of the seat from edge to edge and not be 
less than 1200mm. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the following condition be adopted in the Private Hire and 
Hackney Carriage handbook: 
 

“That the width of the seat be measured in a straight line 
across the centre of the seat from edge to edge of the seat and 

Agenda Item 1

1



shall not be less than 1200mm. In the case of a two-seater seat, 
the measurement shall not be less than 800mm”. 

 
4. CONSULTATION ON NEW PARLIAMENTARY CONSTITUENCY 

BOUNDARIES 
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services which invited the Committee to consider the current consultation 
by the Boundary Commission for England (BCE) on initial proposals for 
new parliamentary boundaries, with a view to submiting its views 
accordingly. 
 
Members were very concerned that under the new proposals announced 
by the BCE, the current Eastleigh parliamentary constituency would be 
split into two constituencies: a revised Eastleigh constituency; and a new 
seat of Hedge End and Hamble-le-Rice. The revised Eastleigh seat would 
include the Eastleigh Borough Council (EBC) wards of Eastleigh North, 
South, Central, Bishopstoke East and West, Fair Oak and Horton Heath, 
and West End North, as well as taking on Chandler’s Ford East and West, 
and Hiltingbury East and West from the current Winchester constituency. 
In addition, three wards from Test Valley Borough, and one from the City 
of Southampton, would be added to the new Eastleigh seat.  
 
The new seat of Hedge End and Hamble-le-Rice would contain the EBC 
wards of Botley, Hedge End Wildern, Grange Park, St Johns, West End 
South, Hamble-le-Rice and Butlocks Heath, Bursledon and Old Netley, 
and Netley Abbey. Added to these wards, there would be five wards from 
the borough of Fareham, and one ward from the City of Southampton. 
 
Members were also concerned that these proposals would divide the 
Borough in two, creating two constituencies spread out over several local 
authorities with the new Eastleigh seat crossing three local authorities 
(Eastleigh, Southampton and Test Valley). Hedge End and Hamble-le-
Rice seat also crossed three local authorities (Eastleigh, Fareham and 
Southampton). 
 
More importantly, it would split West End North from West End South, 
ignoring Parish boundaries and local community ties and leave the City of 
Southampton with four different MPs representing different parts of the 
city. 
 
Members were worried that the proposals ignored long-standing distinct 
community identities within this Borough, dividing the southern parishes of 
this Borough that have been grouped together in the same constituency 
since 1983. It also included areas within the same constituency with no 
common links or community ties. For example: placing Fair Oak & Horton 
Heath in the same constituency as Swaythling, Baddesley and Ampfield 
and Braishfield within the Eastleigh seat, and putting Bitterne and 
Fareham’s western wards in with part of West End and the south of the 
Borough in the Hedge End and Hamble-le-Rice seat. 

2



 
Members felt that the proposals broke the Boundary Commission 
guidelines by disregarding the River Hamble, which acted as a natural 
barrier between Hamble-le-Rice (Eastleigh Borough), and 
Warsash/Sarisbury (Fareham Borough); and failed to take into account the 
fact that the current Eastleigh parliamentary constituency already had the 
right size of electorate as set out by the BCE’s own mission statement for 
this boundary review. 
 
In conclusion, Members stated that the BCE’s proposals were not in the 
best interests of Eastleigh Borough residents, and would create confusion 
over representation, and tension over the artificial divides created within 
communities and villages. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the Council opposes these proposals but recognises that with 
this review Hampshire must lose one Member of Parliament reducing 
its total to seventeen Members of Parliament and concludes:   
 
(1) That there was no reason to change from the 2010 boundaries, 

and would strongly back proposals that took into account 
community ties by reverting to 2005 boundaries for the most 
part;   

 
(2) That by reverting to 2005 boundaries for Hampshire, allowing 

for small changes, the Boundary Commission could realise its 
aim to reduce the number of MPs to 17, whilst taking into 
account natural barriers, community ties, and electorate 
quotas; and 

 
(3) That the current constituency boundaries for the Eastleigh seat 

for the next Parliamentary election in 2015 be supported, and 
advocated that the boundaries of Hampshire’s constituencies 
should be redrawn to more or less replicate the pre-2010 
parliamentary boundaries. 

 
M4603 
 
 

3



4

This page is intentionally left blank



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

ADMINISTRATION COMMITEE 

Monday 6 February 2012 

INSULIN DEPENDANT DIABETES: REMOVAL OF POLICY FOR 
PRIVATE HIRE AND HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVER LICENCES AND 

APPLICANTS 

Report of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Administration Committee removes the policy agreed on 
26 June 2006 with regard to the licensing of private hire and hackney carriage 
drivers who have insulin dependant diabetes, and that the Committee follow the 
DVLA Guidelines for Medical Practitioners.   
 

Summary 
 
This report advises members to remove the attached policy agreed on 26th June 2006 for 
private hire and hackney carriage drivers with insulin dependant diabetes and that the 
Committee follow the DVLA guidelines for medical practitioners. 

Statutory Powers 
 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 

 

Introduction 

1. On the 26 June 2006 the Administration Committee adopted the policy set out 
in Appendix 1 to this report in respect of insulin dependant drivers.  At this 
time “Fitness to Drive”: A Guide for Health Professionals (published on behalf 
of the Department for Transport) recommended that Group 2 medical 
standards applied by the DVLA in relation to bus and lorry drivers should also 
be applied by local authorities to taxi drivers.  

Background 

2. Diabetes mellitus is a condition in which the amount of glucose (sugar) in the 
blood is too high because the body cannot use it properly.  Glucose comes 
from the digestion of starchy foods such as bread, rice, potatoes and plantain, 
from sugar and other sweet foods, and from the liver, which makes glucose.   

3. Insulin is vital for life.  It is a hormone produced by the pancreas, which helps 
the glucose to enter the cells where it is used as fuel by the body.  The main 

Agenda Item 4

5



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

symptoms of untreated diabetes are increased thirst, going to the toilet more 
frequently – especially at night, extreme tiredness, weight loss, slow healing of 
wounds and blurred vision.   

4. Type 1 diabetes develops if the body is unable to produce any insulin.  This 
type of diabetes usually appears before the age of 40.  It is treated with insulin 
injections, diet and regular physical activity.  

5. Type 2 diabetes develops when the body can still make some insulin, but not 
enough, or when the insulin that is produced does not work properly (known 
as insulin resistance).  This type of diabetes usually appears in people over 
the age of 40, though in South Asian and African-Caribbean people, it often 
appears after the age of 25.  It is treated by  

• Diet and physical activity alone; or  

• By diet, physical activity and tablets; or  

• By diet, physical activity and insulin injections 

6. The Department for Transport Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Licensing: Best 
Practice Guidance (March 2010) recommends that it is good practice for 
medical checks to be made on each driver before the initial grant of a licence 
and thereafter for each renewal.  There is general recognition that it is 
appropriate for taxi/PHV drivers to have more stringent medical standards 
than those applicable to normal car drivers because:  

• They carry members of the general public who have expectations of a safe 
journey 

• They are on the road for longer hours than most car drivers 

• They may have to assist disabled passengers and handle luggage.   

They also state that it is best practice for licensing authorities to apply the 
“Group 2” medical standards – applied by the DVLA to the licensing of lorry 
and bus drivers – to taxi and private hire drivers. In particular the Guidance 
suggests that it is best practice to apply the C1 standards to taxi and PHV 
drivers with insulin treated diabetes.  

7. The main aim of treatment of both types of diabetes is to achieve blood 
glucose and blood pressure levels to as near to normal as possible.  This, 
together with a healthy lifestyle, will help to improve well-being and protect 
against long-term damage to the eyes, kidneys, nerves, heart and major 
arteries.   

8. Type 1 diabetes (insulin dependant) 

• This type accounts for approximately 10% of the total number of people 
with diabetes, around 2.6 million people.   

6



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

• Also referred to as insulin dependant diabetes or juvenile diabetes, it 
affects children diagnosed under the age of 5 and is markedly increasing.  

• Type 1 diabetes is caused by the bodies immune system attacking the 
insulin producing cells in the pancreas.  The body no longer produces 
insulin and glucose levels rise and treatment with insulin injections is 
always required for survival.  It is diagnosed as an acute condition.   

• Insulin cannot be taken in a tablet form because, as it is a protein, it would 
be digested in the stomach before it had any effect.   

• There are three groups of insulin – animal, human (not from humans but 
produced synthetically to match human insulin) and analogues.  Nowadays 
most people use human insulin and insulin analogues, although a small 
number of people still use animal insulin because they have some 
evidence that they would otherwise lose their awareness of hypos or they 
find animal insulin works better for them.    

• There are six main types of insulin which range depending on how long 
they take to act and how long they last in the body.  The patients 
healthcare provider will explain the benefits of each of the main types 
before the patient starts their insulin treatment.   

9. Treatment of Type 1 Diabetes 

Lack of insulin production by the pancreas makes type 1 diabetes particularly 
difficult to control.  Treatment requires a strict regime that typically includes a 
carefully calculated diet, planned physical activity, home blood glucose testing 
several times a day and multiple daily insulin injections.   

10. A number of functional abilities are thought to be affected during 
hypoglycaemia, impairments reported to be associated with the condition 
include: 

• Slower Reaction Time 

• Slower speed of performance in complex tasks; 

• Slowed speed of visual information processing; 

• Difficulty in rapid decision making; 

• Difficulty with sustained attention; 

• Difficulty with analysis of complex visual stimuli; 

• Impaired hand-eye coordination; 

• Impaired contrast sensitivity; 

• Difficulty with control of anger and irritability; and 

7



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

• Decreased cognitive functions, mental confusion.  

11 The current DVLA Guidelines (August 2011) refer to the change in the law 
from 15 November 2011 relating to Group 2 entitlement.  The Motor Vehicles 
(Driving Licences) Regulations 1999 were amended by the Motor Vehicle 
(Driving Licences) (Amendment) Regulations 2011. These amendments came 
into force on 15 November 2011 and included an amendment to regulation 73 
of the 1999 Regulations which relates to disabilities prescribed in respect of 
group 2 licences. The change in the law means that from 15 November 2011 
drivers with insulin dependant diabetes can now meet the Group 2 standard 
providing they meet certain criteria.  This criterion is set out in the extract from 
the DVLA Guidelines as Appendix 2.   

12. The outcome of removing this policy and following the DVLA Guidelines will 
be a more consistent approach in line with other Local Authorities which will 
simplify what is required for drivers who have insulin dependant diabetes.  It 
ensures that as long as the drivers continue to meet all the requirements as 
specified in the DVLA Guidelines, drivers can continue to be a hackney 
carriage or private hire driver and are not precluded from making a living.   

 Financial Implications 

13. There will be no financial implications to the Council.  The applicants will incur 
the cost of paying for the Consultants report which they are already required 
to do under our existing policy at the moment.   

Risk Assessment 

14. There will be no risks arising from these changes.   

Equality and Diversity Implications 

15. By following the DVLA Guidelines this will ensure equality for all existing and 
new private hire and hackney carriage drivers.   

Conclusion 

16. In conclusion it is proposed that the Council remove the existing policy 
relating to insulin dependant diabetes and follow the DVLA Guidelines for 
medical practitioners.  

RICHARD WARD 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 
Date: 5 January 2012 
Contact Officer: Jennifer Dunn 
Tel No: 023 80688109 
e-mail: Jennifer.dunn@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 2 
 

8



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following documents disclose facts or matters on which this report or an 
important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in the 
preparation of this report: 

List Background Papers  
Information from Diabetes UK 
DVLA Guidelines for medical practitioners  
The Department for Transport Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Licensing: Best Practice 
Guidance March 2010 

9



10

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1  
 

POLICY ON LICENSING INSULIN-DEPENDANT DIABETICS AS HACKNEY 
CARRIAGE OR PRIVATE HIRE DRIVERS 

 
If you have insulin-treated diabetes, we will consider the following points when dealing with 
your application: 
 
If you are applying for a hackney carriage or private hire driver’s licence: 
you must satisfy our Licensing Section that you meet the medical requirements that would 
allow us to issue a private hire/hackney carriage or restricted private hire driver’s licence. 

 
You will need to provide a medical report from a hospital consultant specialising in 
diabetes, confirming that: 

 
• you have been receiving insulin treatment for over four weeks 
• for a year before the date of your application, you have not suffered a 

hypoglycaemic episode while you were driving, which meant you needed 
somebody to help you  

• you have a history of responsible diabetic control and are at minimal risk of 
having a hypoglycaemic attack that will incapacitate you. 

 
You must also provide a signed declaration that: 
 

• you will comply with the directions for treatment from the doctor supervising your 
treatment  

• you will immediately write to our Licensing Section, telling them of any change in 
your diabetic condition 

• as and when necessary, you will provide our Licensing Section with evidence 
that you are monitoring your blood glucose levels at least twice a day, and, if 
required by your consultant or doctor to do so, at appropriate times while you 
are working, provided the vehicle is stationary and parked in a safe place while 
you are carrying out the test.  

 
If you are renewing your hackney carriage or private hire driver’s licence: 
 You must provide a medical report from a hospital consultant specialising in diabetes 
confirming: 
 

• that during the last year, you have not suffered a hypoglycaemic episode while 
you were driving, which meant you needed somebody to help you  

• you have a history of responsible diabetic control and are at minimal risk of 
having a hypoglycaemic attack that will incapacitate you. 

 
You must follow the requirements you agreed to when you signed the declaration when we 
issued your licence.  
 
Date: June 2006 
 
 

11



12

This page is intentionally left blank



13



14



15



16



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

Monday 6 February 2012 

POLLING REVIEW –  

BISHOPSTOKE WEST AND EASTLEIGH CENTRAL 

Report of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

It is recommended that: 

(1) The findings of the Bishopstoke West and Eastleigh Central Polling Review 
be noted, and the Committee’s thanks to respondents be recorded; 

(2) In Bishopstoke West, the polling stations for AB and AD, which are currently 
at Saint Mary’s Church Room and Stoke Park Junior School respectively, be 
combined into a double polling station at the Methodist Church, Sedgwick 
Road; and 

(3) In Eastleigh Central, the poling station for DE which is currently at the Scout 
Hut, Southampton Road be relocated to Cranbury Community Centre, 
Cranbury Road (combining with DC as a double station) as set out in option 2 
of the consultation proposals. 

 

Summary 
 
The Council undertook a comprehensive review of its polling districts and places at the 
end of 2010. As a result changes were made and it was requested that further work be 
undertaken to achieve greater efficiencies in respect of polling districts and voting 
arrangements in Bishopstoke West and Eastleigh Central. This report sets out the 
responses received to the consultation on the polling arrangements in these areas and the 
possible changes.   

Statutory Powers 
 
Representation of the People Act 1983 

Electoral Administration Act 2006 

Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places (Parliamentary Elections) Regulations 2006 

 

Agenda Item 5

17



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

Introduction 

1. The Council undertook a comprehensive review of its polling districts and 
places at the end of 2010. As a result changes were made and it was 
requested that further work be undertaken to achieve greater efficiencies in 
respect of polling districts and voting arrangements in Bishopstoke West and 
Eastleigh Central.  

2. Whilst the aim is to make efficiencies, and ensure that the service is providing 
value for money, it is important to maintain voter convenience and 
accessibility. 

3. A consultation has been carried out on possible changes in these two areas 
and this report considers the responses to this consultation and makes 
recommendations for change. 

4. This review must not be confused with changing any district ward boundaries; 
this review is purely about the polling stations which are assigned to each 
polling district.  

Definitions 

5. A polling district is a geographical sub-division of an electoral area, i.e. a UK 
Parliamentary constituency, a European Parliamentary electoral region, a 
ward or an electoral division. It is the responsibility of the Borough Council to 
divide its area into polling districts, and for keeping the polling districts under 
review.  

6. A polling place is a geographical area in which a polling station is located. 
However, as there is no legal definition of what a polling place is, the 
geographical area could be defined as tightly as a particular building or as 
widely as the entire polling district. It is the responsibility of the Borough 
Council to designate the polling places, and for keeping the polling places 
under review.  

7. A polling station is the actual area where the process of voting takes place, 
and must be located within the polling place designated for the particular 
polling district. The Returning Officer for the particular election must provide a 
sufficient number of polling stations, and allot the electors to those polling 
stations in such manner as he or she thinks the most convenient.  

Review Procedure 

8. The consultation period ran from 6 October 2011 to 18 November 2011. This 
involved a consultation notice and background information being placed on 
the Council’s website as well as a direct mailing to elected persons (MEP's, 
MP's and Borough Councillors), local political parties, parish councils and to 
persons and organisations with particular expertise in relation to access to 
premises for people with different forms of disability and local community 
groups.  

18



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

9. Whilst the consultation was open in that views were sought in respect of all 
current arrangements and venues, it was also highlighted that the Council had 
provisionally earmarked some polling stations that could potentially be 
combined with others as part of the required budget savings.  In addition 
comments were therefore invited on these specific proposals: 

Bishopstoke West: 

POLLING 
DISTRCT 

POLLING STATION PROPOSALS 

AA Community Centre, Church Road No change 

AB St. Marys Church Room, Stoke Park 
Road 

Move to Methodist 
Church, Sedgwick Road 

AC Memorial Hall, Riverside No change 

AD Stoke Park Junior School, 
Underwood Road 

Move to Methodist 
Church, Sedgwick Road 

 

Eastleigh Central 

Option 1 

POLLING 
DISTRCT 

POLLING STATION PROPOSALS 

DA Masonic Hall, Cranbury Road No change 

DB Masonic Hall, Cranbury Road No change 

DC Cranbury Community Centre, 
Cranbury Road 

Move to the Community 
Centre / Guide Building, 
Hoddinott Road 

DD Eastleigh Baptist Church, Wells 
Place/Desborough Road 

Move to the Cranbury 
Community Centre, 
Cranbury Road  

DE Scout Hut, Southampton Road Move to the Cranbury 
Community Centre, 
Cranbury Road 

DF St Peter’s Church, Shakespeare 
Road 

No change 

 

Eastleigh Central 

19



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

Option 2 

POLLING 
DISTRCT 

POLLING STATION PROPOSALS 

DA Masonic Hall, Cranbury Road No change 

DB Masonic Hall, Cranbury Road No change 

DC Cranbury Community Centre, 
Cranbury Road 

No change 

DD Eastleigh Baptist Church, Wells 
Place/Desborough Road 

No change 

DE Scout Hut, Southampton Road Move to the Cranbury 
Community Centre, 
Cranbury Road 

DF St Peter’s Church, Shakespeare 
Road 

No change 

 

10. The number of electors who were eligible to vote at each of the polling 
stations above on 6 May 2010 is as follows:  

POLLING DISTRICT & STATION NUMBER OF 
ELECTORS  

AA - Community Centre, Church Road 801 
AB - St. Marys Church Room, Stoke Park Road 824 
AC - Memorial Hall, Riverside 930 
AD - Stoke Park Junior School, Underwood Road 975 
DA - Masonic Hall, Cranbury Road 1,084 
DB - Masonic Hall, Cranbury Road 1,250 
DC - Cranbury Community Centre, Cranbury Road 2,330 
DD - Eastleigh Baptist Church, Wells Place 1,278 
DE - Scout Hut, Southampton Road 996 
DF - St Peter’s Church, Shakespeare Road 749 

 

11. Plans showing the polling district boundaries and the location of the polling 
stations can be found in Appendices A and B.  

Representations received 

12. A total of 5 responses were received to the consultation, which can be 
summarised as follows: 

Bishopstoke West 

20



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

(i) Eastleigh Labour Party:   

“We strongly object to the proposal to move district AD from Stoke Park 
Junior School in Underwood Road to the Methodist Church in Sedgwick 
Road, and believe the Junior School should remain the polling station 
for this district.  Currently the distance of the furthest property within AD 
from the polling station is approx. 0.45 miles, if this were moved to the 
Methodist Church the distance of the furthest property would increase 
to approx. 0.8 miles. The geography of that part of Bishopstoke also 
needs to be taken into account as voters would be required to walk up 
a not insignificant hill.  As about two-thirds of voters in AD prefer to vote 
in person rather than by post we believe this proposed change would 
deter some people, particularly older voters and those with young 
children, from exercising their right to vote.  Another advantage of 
keeping the school is that parents are more inclined to vote on their 
way to drop off or pick up their children from the adjoining infant school 
or on their way to the local Co-op.  

 
Due to the fairly close proximity (approx. 0.2 miles) of St Mary’s Church 
Room in Stoke Park Road and the Methodist Church in Sedgwick Road 
we have no particular objection to the proposed move of polling district 
AB. 

 
Districts AA and AC should remain unchanged.” 
 

(ii) Bishopstoke Parish Council expressed concerns regarding the effect of 
the changes on elderly and disabled voters who will have to walk/travel 
further to exercise their vote if the polling station for polling district AD is 
relocated to the Methodist Church in Sedgwick Road which for many 
will be up a hill.  

(iii) A Bishopstoke Parish Councillor made an alternative suggestion for the 
change of polling stations in Bishopstoke. She suggests that the AB 
district polling station move from St. Mary’s Church Rooms to join with 
AA district voting at the Community Centre. She advised that the 
Centre and the Church Rooms are close to each other and there is 
ample room at the Community Centre to accommodate voting for two 
polling districts. She also believes that the AD district should continue 
to have a polling station at Stoke Park Junior School as it is a 
significant distance from the furthest reaches of AD to the Methodist 
Church in Sedgwick Road and expecting people to travel so much 
further seems unreasonable. The parish councillor believes that with 
her suggested changes, the number of polling stations would still 
reduce to three, so cutting the cost of hiring premises on election day, 
and polling stations would be spread more evenly in the ward.  

(iv) Eastleigh Liberal Democrats Constituency Party is in favour of the 
proposals for Bishopstoke West. 

(v) The Eastleigh and District Disability Forum advised that the proposed 
venues had good access as far as they were aware. 

21



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

Eastleigh Central 

(vi) Eastleigh Labour Party: 

“We do not agree with either Option 1 or Option 2, which we feel fails to 
fully take into account what may best serve the electorate, and instead 
would make our own proposals for your consideration. 
 
We believe district DC should move to the Community Centre/Guide 
Building in Hoddinott Road.  This would better serve those voters on 
the Pirelli estate and surrounding areas by reducing the current 
distance to their polling station. 
 
We believe DE should remain at the Scout Hut in Southampton Road.  
To move it to the Cranbury Community Centre would mean longer 
distances for voters to travel, especially those in Campbell Road. 
 
Districts DA, DB, DD and DF should remain unchanged.” 
 

(vii) Eastleigh Liberal Democrats Constituency Party is in favour of the 
proposals for Eastleigh Central, especially option 1. 

(viii) The Eastleigh and District Disability Forum advised that the proposed 
venues had good access as far as they were aware. They did feel there 
was an issue with the lack of dropped kerbs/ tactile paving in the area 
of Cranbury Road and Grantham Road which affects access to the 
Community Centre.  

(ix) One Borough Councillor advised that he felt generally the 
arrangements worked well but that it might be worth looking at 
providing a poling station in the western part of the polling district as 
this may encourage voters living on the Pirelli site and the Derby Road 
and Passfield Avenue area.  

General comments 

(x) Eastleigh Labour Party: 

“Eastleigh Labour Party strongly believes that proposed changes of this 
nature to polling stations should not take place until there is a full 
review of polling districts. There are currently many anomalies where 
streets are split that would be better served being treated as a whole 
with the entire road using the same polling station.   
 
Eastleigh Labour Party supports the Coalition Government’s aims to 
make it easier to vote and does not understand why, at a time when the 
Government is mooting making it easier to vote by using pubs, 
supermarkets, etc. Eastleigh Borough Council seems to want to make it 
more difficult.” 
   

13. The Returning Officer looked at the proposals, and his formal response is: 

22



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

Bishopstoke West 

(i) There are issues with the use of St Marys Church room as it is located 
in a building which is in need of maintenance and may not be fit for 
purpose in the near future. 

(ii) Stoke Park Junior School is a suitable location but using an alternative 
would prevent any disruption to the school. In previous years the school 
has informed the Elections Office that the school is unavailable. 

(iii) The Methodist Church is conveniently located for the majority of 
electors in both the AB and AD wards. The building and the room that 
will be used for polling are suitable for the purpose; there is disabled 
access, enough space and adequate facilities for staff.  

Eastleigh Central 

(i) The proposal to move Cranbury Community Centre, Cranbury Road 
(DC) to the Community Centre / Guide Building, Hoddinott Road is not 
desirable as whilst the proposed building is largely suitable there are 
other issues to consider. The parking at the building is limited and it is 
understood that there are proposals to introduce more restrictions on 
the roads in the area. The access to the building is via a heavy door 
which causes difficulty for wheelchair access. It has proven very difficult 
to make contact with the relevant officers who rent/run the premises 
which could present difficulties to staff in making the necessary 
arrangements especially at times when there are tight deadlines. 

(ii) The Scout Hut, Southampton Road (DE) is a suitable polling station but 
there are issues with parking at the site. There is very limited parking 
allocated for the Scout Hut and the surrounding area is within a 
controlled parking zone. This polling station could be accommodated in 
the Cranbury Community Centre, Cranbury Road joining with DC as a 
double station. Cranbury Community Centre is large enough to 
accommodate two polling stations and has a fairly large car park. It is in 
a suitable location for electors from both the DE and DC polling 
districts.  

(iii) Overall option 2 for the Eastleigh Central Ward provides the electors 
with the best arrangement for voting and causes the least disruption 
and confusion to the electors.  

14. The elections team at the Council concur with the comments made by the 
Returning Officer and raised the following issues: 

(i) Stoke Park Junior School have expressed their wish for the school not 
to be used as a polling station, and whilst it is a suitable building, it 
would help to prevent disruption to the school and the resulting issues if 
this polling station could be accommodated elsewhere. The school 
does close on polling day for the safety of the children. This is 
extremely troublesome especially when there is more than one election 
in a year and the school have requested on numerous occasions that 

23



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

they are not used and that a more suitable venue is found. In 2012 
there will be elections in May and an additional election for the Police 
and Crime Commissioners in November which will mean that the 
school will be closed on two days causing inconvenience for the 
parents.  

(ii) There are particular concerns about the proposal to use the Community 
Centre/ Guide Building on Hoddinott Road as it has proven very difficult 
to contact the head tenant of the building. This could result in difficulties 
when making the necessary arrangements for an election especially at 
times when there are tight deadlines.  

(iii) Whilst every effort is made to secure the polling stations agreed it is, on 
occasion, unavoidable that an alternative must be used and the 
Returning Officer will make this decision as appropriate.  

Financial Implications 

15. The review has been conducted within existing staff resources. 

16. The costs involved with the hire of each of the polling stations is: 

POLLING DISTRICT & STATION Cost for Hire 
£ 

AA - Community Centre, Church Road 90.00 
AB - St. Marys Church Room, Stoke Park Road 120.00 
AC - Memorial Hall, Riverside 112.00 
AD - Stoke Park Junior School, Underwood Road 50.00 
DA & DB - Masonic Hall, Cranbury Road 288.00 
DC - Cranbury Community Centre, Cranbury Road 288.00 
DD - Eastleigh Baptist Church, Wells Place 278.55 
DE - Scout Hut, Southampton Road 192.00 
DF - St Peter’s Church, Shakespeare Road 456.00 
  
Proposed New Polling Stations:  
Methodist Church, Sedgwick Road 250.00 
Community Centre / Guide Building, Hoddinott Road Unknown 
Conversion of the Cranbury Community Centre to a 
double station 

No additional 
charge 

 

17. Within this list there is a wide range of charges but this is comparable with 
charges generally across the Borough. The Returning Officer has the right to 
use a room within a school free of charge but the school may charge for 
heating and light. Other venues can charge any amount they see fit.  

18. A reduction in the overall number of polling stations would result in minimal 
savings on staffing costs. The number of presiding officers and poll clerks is 
based on the size of the electorate and it will not therefore be possible to 
reduce the number of staff.   

24



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

Risk Assessment 

19. As highlighted at the start of this report, the law places a duty on the Council 
to conduct reviews and, specifically within this, to ensure safe and appropriate 
access arrangements for both voters and staff. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

20. The aforementioned duty to conduct the review includes a responsibility to 
ensure that everyone who is entitled to vote can do so with equality of access 
– from actual arrangements at the polling station (such as provision of ramps 
and wide doors to enable those voters in a wheelchair to cast their vote) to the 
polling station being within reasonable proximity to their home address.  

Conclusion 

21. This review considers the arrangements for voting in Bishopstoke West and 
Eastleigh Central. Following a period of consultation, views have been 
submitted on the current arrangements and on the proposed changes. It is 
recommended that consideration be given to making changes to the polling 
stations.   

22. Members are asked to consider the proposed changes and make a decision 
taking into account the views received, the financial implications and the 
location of the polling stations in relation to the demographics of the area.  

RICHARD WARD 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services / Returning Officer 

 
Date: 7 December 2011 
Contact Officer: Alison Ball 
Tel No: 023 8068 8111 
e-mail: alison.ball@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: Two 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following documents disclose facts or matters on which this report or an 
important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in the 
preparation of this report:  
 
Electoral Commission Circular EC19/2010 – Appendix A: Review of polling districts, 
polling places and polling stations  
  

25



26

This page is intentionally left blank



27



28

This page is intentionally left blank



29



30

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	4 Insulin Dependant Diabetes: Removal of Policy for Private Hire and Hackney Carriage Drivers
	Appendix 1 - insulin
	appendix 2 - insulin

	5 Polling Review - Bishopstoke West and Eastleigh Central
	Admin Report Appendix A
	Admin Report Appendix B


